

<u>Time</u>	<u>Place</u>
Feb. 18 - 7:00 p.m. - 10:00 p.m.	State Bar Building
Feb. 19 - 9:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m.	601 McAllister St.
Feb. 20 - 9:00 a.m. - 4:00 p.m.	San Francisco

AGENDA

for meeting of

CALIFORNIA LAW REVISION COMMISSION

San Francisco

February 18-20, 1965

AGENDA ITEMS

Thursday evening, February 18

1. Approval of Minutes for January 1965 Meeting (enclosed)
2. Administrative matters, if any
3. Study No. 34(L) - New Evidence Code  
     Memorandum 65-4 (enclosed)  
     First Supplement to Memorandum 65-4 (to be sent)  
     Second Supplement to Memorandum 65-4 (to be sent)

Friday, February 19

Continuation of agenda item 3.

4. Agenda for future meetings  
     Memorandum 65-3 (enclosed)
5. Study No. 62 - Vehicle Code Section 17150  
     Research Study (sent January 25, 1965)  
     Memorandum 65-5 (to be sent)
6. Study No. 53(L) - Personal Injury Damages as Separate Property  
     Research Study (sent January 25, 1965)  
     Memorandum 65-6 (to be sent)
7. Quasi-community Property  
     Pamphlets containing Commission Recommendations (two) (to be sent)  
     Memorandum 65-7 (to be sent)

Saturday, February 20

8. Study No. 52(L) - Sovereign Immunity  
Pocket Part of Volume 1 of Government Code  
Memorandum 65-8 (enclosed)  
First Supplement to Memorandum 65-8 (to be sent)

Continue on agenda items 4, 5, 6, and 7, if not completed on February 19.

file

MINUTES OF MEETING

of

FEBRUARY 18, 19, AND 20, 1965

San Francisco

A regular meeting of the California Law Revision Commission was held in San Francisco on February 18, 19, and 20, 1965.

Present: John R. McDonough, Jr., Chairman  
Richard H. Keatinge, Vice Chairman  
James R. Edwards  
Sho Sato  
Thomas E. Stanton, Jr.

Absent: Hon. James A. Cobey  
Hon. Alfred H. Song  
Joseph A. Ball  
Herman F. Selvin  
George H. Murphy, ex officio

Messrs. John H. DeMouilly, Joseph B. Harvey, and Jon D. Smock of the Commission's staff were also present.

Also present were the following:

- Stephen Birdlebaugh, Judicial Council (February 18 and 19)
- Charles H. Bobby, Office of Administrative Procedure (February 19)
- Robert F. Carlson, Department of Public Works
- Jack D. Clevenger, Unemployment Insurance Appeals Board (February 19)
- George R. Coan, Office of Administrative Procedure (February 19)
- Robert J. DeFea, Department of Public Works (February 19)
- Lowell W. Harris, Unemployment Insurance Appeals Board (February 19)
- Warren P. Marsden, Judicial Council (February 18 and 19)
- Mark C. Nosler, Department of Finance (February 20)
- Joseph T. Powers, Office of the District Attorney, L.A. (February 18 and 19)
- Gordon Ringer, Office of the Attorney General (February 18 and 19)
- S. Don Schultz, California State Psychological Association (February 19)
- Willard A. Shank, Office of the Attorney General (February 19 and 20)
- Arlo Smith, Office of the Attorney General (February 18 and 19)
- Jack D. Wickware, League of California Cities (February 20)

Minutes - Regular Meeting  
February 18, 19, and 20, 1965

ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

Minutes of January 1965 Meeting. The minutes of the January 1965 meeting were approved as submitted.

Legislative Procedure. The Commission discussed the procedure that should be followed regarding amendments to its recommended legislation after introduction in the Legislature. It was agreed that whenever possible the Commission (or, if time does not permit, the Chairman) should be given an opportunity to review amendments to be made to the bills except for amendments made by a legislative member on his own initiative.

Studies for Future Consideration. The Commission considered Memorandum 65-3 relating to projects to be undertaken for future legislative sessions and directed the staff to prepare a memorandum listing suggested priorities to be given studies on the Commission's agenda.

Future Meetings. Future meetings are scheduled as follows:

March 19 and 20	Los Angeles
April 11-13	Lake Tahoe
May 14 and 15	San Francisco
June 18 and 19	Los Angeles
July 16 and 17	San Francisco
August	No meeting

Minutes - Regular Meeting  
February 18, 19, and 20, 1965

STUDY NO. 34(L) - EVIDENCE CODE

The Commission considered Memoranda 65-4 and 65-9 together with several supplements and exhibits thereto relating to the proposed Evidence Code. Except as noted below, the Commission approved all amendments to the Code as reflected in Assembly Bill No. 333 as amended February 11, 1965 (Senate Bill No. 110 as amended February 18, 1965):

Section 311. The original language was restored to subdivision (a) to read: "the law of a foreign nation or a public entity in a foreign nation" in place of "the law of a public entity," and the subdivision was renumbered subdivision (b) of Section 310. Section 310 was renumbered subdivision (a) of Section 310.

Subdivision (b) of Section 311 was renumbered Section 311 and the phrase "the court is unable to determine it" was replaced with the phrase "such law cannot be determined."

Section 452. The revision to subdivision (a) of Section 452 was approved, but the order was reversed so that the reference to resolutions and private acts would appear after the reference to the more general "decisional, constitutional, and statutory law."

The Commission considered further revisions to the bills in response to staff recommendations and suggestions from interested persons. The Commission approved all of the amendments to the Code as reflected in Senate Bill No. 110 as amended February 24, 1965 (Assembly Bill No. 333 as amended March 2, 1965) except the Commission disapproved deleting Sections 1070 through 1073 and replacing these sections with a new Section 1070 reading precisely the same as Code of Civil Procedure Section 1881(6) in regard to immunity of a newsman

Minutes - Regular Meeting  
February 18, 19, and 20, 1965

from citation for contempt. In addition, the Commission's approval of the amendments to Section 788 and Sections 664-665 was expressly conditioned upon an agreement reached with the Office of the Attorney General and the District Attorneys' Association of California.

Minutes - Regular Meeting  
February 18, 19, and 20, 1965

STUDY NO. 52(L) - SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY

The Commission considered Memorandum 65-8 and the attachments thereto relating to proposed amendments to the Governmental Liability Act. The Commission agreed not to submit to the 1965 session any recommendation proposing changes in the substantive liability provisions of the 1963 legislation (Parts 1 and 2 of Division 3.6 of Title 1 of the Government Code) but to continue this matter on its agenda for further study with a view to submitting at a later session a more comprehensive recommendation regarding substantive aspects of the 1963 Act. The Commission then agreed to submit to the 1965 session proposed legislation relating to liability arising out of ownership or operation of motor vehicles and proposed revisions in the provisions of the 1963 Act relating to claims and actions (Parts 3 and 4). The Commission considered and approved the provisions attached hereto relating to vehicles (green pages) and claims (yellow pages), the specific language of which was approved except for additional revisions made in Sections 911.6, 945.6, 946.6, and 950.2 (which were approved in principle only).

An act to amend Sections 17000, 17001, and 17004 of, and to repeal  
Section 17002 of, and to add Section 17002 to the Vehicle Code,  
relating to liability arising out of ownership or operation of  
vehicles.

The people of the State of California do enact as follows:

SEC. 1. Section 17000 of the Vehicle Code is amended to read:

17000. As used in this chapter:

~~,"public-agency"-means-the-State,-any-county,-municipal-corporation,  
district-and-political-subdivision-of-the-State,-or-the-State-Compensation  
Insurance-Fund.~~

(a) "Employee" includes an officer, employee, or servant, whether  
or not compensated, but does not include an independent contractor.

(b) "Employment" includes office or employment.

(c) "Public entity" includes the State, the Regents of the University  
of California, a county, city, district, public authority, public agency,  
and any other political subdivision or public corporation in the State.

SEC. 2. Section 17001 of the Vehicle Code is amended to read:

~~17001. Any public agency owning any motor vehicle is responsible to every person who sustains any damage by reason of death, or injury to person or property as the result of the negligent operation of the motor vehicle by an officer, agent, or employee or as the result of the negligent operation of any other motor vehicle by any officer, agent, or employee when acting within the scope of his office, agency, or employment. -- The injured person may sue the public agency in any court of competent jurisdiction in this State in the manner directed by law.~~

A public entity is liable for death or injury to person or property proximately caused by a negligent or wrongful act or omission in the operation of any motor vehicle by an employee of the public entity acting within the scope of his employment.

SEC. 3. Section 17002 of the Vehicle Code is repealed.

~~17002. . If there is recovery under this chapter against a public agency, it shall be subrogated to all the rights of the person injured against the officer, agent, or employee and may recover from the officer, agent, or employee the total amount of any judgment and costs recovered against the public agency, together with costs therein.~~

SEC. 4. Section 17002 is added to the Vehicle Code, to read:

17002. Subject to Article 3 (commencing with Section 825) of Chapter 1 of Part 2 of Division 3.6 of Title 1 of the Government Code, a public entity is liable for death or injury to person or property to the same extent as a private person under the provisions of Article 2 (commencing with Section 17150) of this chapter.

SEC. 5. Section 17004 of the Vehicle Code is amended to read:

~~17004. No member of any police or fire department maintained by a county, city, or district, and no member of the California Highway Patrol or employee of the Division of Forestry, is~~ A public employee is not liable for civil damages on account of personal injury to or death of any person or damage to property resulting from the operation, in the line of duty, of an authorized emergency vehicle while responding to an emergency call or when in the immediate pursuit of an actual or suspected violator of the law, or when responding to but not upon returning from a fire alarm or other emergency call.

An act to amend Sections 910, 910.4, 911.4, 911.6, 912.2, 912.4, 915, 930, 930.2, 935, 935.2, 935.4, 943, 945.4, 945.6, 945.8, 950.2, 950.4, 950.6, 960.4, 53050, and 53051 of the Government Code, to repeal Sections 912, 945.5, and 960.2 of the Government Code, and to add Sections 930.4, 930.6, 946.4, 946.6, 960.2, 960.3, and 960.8 to the Government Code, relating to the liability of public entities and public officers, servants, and employees.

The people of the State of California do enact as follows:

SECTION 1. Section 910 of the Government Code is amended to read:

910. A claim shall be presented by the claimant or by a person acting on his behalf and shall show:

(a) The name and post office address of the claimant;

(b) The post office address to which the person presenting the claim desires notices to be sent;

(c) The date, place and other circumstances of the occurrence or transaction which gave rise to the claim asserted;

(d) A general description of the indebtedness, obligation, injury, damage or loss incurred so far as it may be known at the time of presentation of the claim; and

(e) The name or names of the public employee or employees causing the injury, damage, or loss, if known + ; and

(f) The amount claimed as of the date of presentation of the claim, including the estimated amount of any prospective injury, damage, or loss, insofar as it may be known at the time of the presentation of the claim, together with the basis of computation of the amount claimed.

SEC. 2. Section 910.4 of the Government Code is amended to read:

910.4. The board may provide forms specifying the information to be contained in claims against the public entity. If the board provides forms pursuant to this section, the person presenting a claim need not use such form if he presents his claim in conformity with Sections 910 and 910.2. ~~If he uses the form provided pursuant to this section and complies substantially with its requirements, he shall be deemed to have complied with Sections 910 and 910.2.~~ A claim presented on a form provided pursuant to this section shall be deemed to be in conformity with Sections 910 and 910.2 if the claim complies substantially with the requirements of the form or with the requirements of Sections 910 and 910.2.

SEC. 3. Section 911.4 of the Government Code is amended to read:

911.4. (a) When a claim that is required by Section 911.2 to be presented not later than the 100th day after the accrual of the cause of action is not presented within such time, a written application may be made to the public entity for leave to present such claim.

(b) The application shall be presented to the public entity as provided in Article 2 (commencing with Section 915) of this chapter within a reasonable time not to exceed one year after the accrual of the cause of action and shall state the reason for the delay in presenting the claim. The proposed claim shall be attached to the application.

SEC. 4. Section 911.6 of the Government Code is amended to read:

911.6. (a) The board shall grant or deny the application within 35 ~~45~~ days after it is presented to the board. If the board does not act upon the application within ~~35~~ 45 days after the application is presented, the application shall be deemed to have been denied on the ~~35th~~ 45th day.

(b) The board shall grant the application where:

(1) The failure to present the claim was through mistake, inadvertence, surprise or excusable neglect and the public entity was not prejudiced by the failure to present the claim within the time specified in Section 911.2; or

(2) ~~The claimant~~ person required to file the claim was a minor during all of the time specified in Section 911.2 for the presentation of the claim; or

(3) ~~The claimant~~ person required to file the claim was physically or mentally incapacitated during all of the time specified in Section 911.2 for the presentation of the claim and by reason of such disability failed to present a claim during such time; or

(4) ~~The claimant~~ person required to file the claim died before the expiration of the time specified in Section 911.2 for the presentation of the claim.

SEC. 5. Section 912 of the Government Code is repealed.

912.-- (a)--As used in this section, "superior court" means:

(1)--In the case of a claim against a local public entity, the superior court of the county in which the local public entity has its principal office.

(2)--In the case of a claim against the State, the superior court of any county in which the Attorney General has an office.

(b)--The superior court shall grant leave to present a claim after the expiration of the time specified in Section 911.2 if the court finds that the application to the board under Section 911.4 was made within a reasonable time not to exceed one year after the accrual of the cause of action and was denied or deemed denied pursuant to Section 911.6 and that:

(1)--The failure to present the claim was through mistake, inadvertency, surprise or excusable neglect unless the public entity against which the claim is made establishes that it would be prejudiced if leave to present the claim were granted; or

(2)--The claimant was a minor during all of the time specified in Section 911.2 for the presentation of the claim; or

(3)--The claimant was physically or mentally incapacitated during all of the time specified in Section 911.2 for the presentation of the claim and by reason of such disability failed to present a claim during such time; or

(4)--The claimant died before the expiration of the time specified in Section 911.2 for the presentation of the claim.

(c)--Application to the superior court for leave to present a claim under this section must be made by a petition showing (1) that application was made to the board under Section 911.4 and was denied or deemed denied

and (2) the reason for the failure to present the claim. -- A copy of the proposed claim shall be attached to the petition. -- The petition shall be filed within 20 days after the application to the board is denied or deemed denied.

(d) -- A copy of the petition and the proposed claim and a written notice of the time and place of hearing thereof shall be served (1) on the clerk or secretary or board of the local public entity if the claim is against a local public entity, or (2) on the State Board of Control or its secretary if the claim is against the State, not less than 10 days before the hearing.

(e) -- The court shall make an independent determination upon the application. The determination shall be made upon the basis of the petition, any affidavits in support of or in opposition to the petition, and any additional evidence received at the hearing on the petition.

SEC. 6. Section 912.2 of the Government Code is amended  
to read:

912.2. If an application for leave to present a claim is granted by the board pursuant to Section 911.6, ~~or if a petition for leave to present a claim is granted by the court pursuant to Section 912,~~ the claim shall be deemed to have been presented to the board upon the day that leave to present the claim is granted.

SEC. 7. Section 912.4 of the Government Code is amended to read:

912.4. (a) The board shall act on a claim in the manner provided in Section 912.6 or 912.8 within 45 days after the claim has been presented. If a claim is amended, the board shall act on the amended claim within 45 days after the amended claim is presented.

(b) The claimant and the board may extend the period within which the board is required to act on the claim by written agreement made :

(1) Before ~~or~~ after the expiration of such period ; or

(2) After the expiration of such period if an action based on the claim has not been commenced and is not yet barred by the period of limitations provided in Section 945.6 .

(c) If the board fails or refuses to act on a claim within the time prescribed by this section, the claim shall be deemed to have been rejected by the board on the last day of the period within which the board was required to act upon the claim. If the period within which the board is required to act is extended by agreement pursuant to this section , whether made before or after the expiration of such period, the last day of the period within which the board is required to act shall be the last day of the period specified in such agreement.

SEC. 8. Section 915 of the Government Code is amended to read:

915. (a) A claim, any amendment thereto, or an application to the public entity for leave to present a late claim shall be presented to a local public entity by:

(1) Delivering it to the clerk, secretary or auditor thereof; or

(2) Mailing it to such clerk, secretary or auditor or to the governing body at its principal office.

(b) A claim, any amendment thereto, or an application for leave to file a late claim shall be presented to the State by:

(1) Delivering it to an office of the State Board of Control; or

(2) Mailing it to the State Board of Control at its principal office.

(c) A claim, amendment or application shall be deemed to have been presented in compliance with this section even though it is not delivered or mailed as provided in this section if it is actually received by the clerk, secretary, auditor or board of the local public entity, or is actually received at an office of the State Board of Control, within the time prescribed for presentation thereof.

(d) A claim, amendment or application shall be deemed to have been presented in compliance with this section to a public agency as defined in Section 53050 if it is delivered or mailed within the time prescribed for presentation thereof in conformity with the information contained in the statement in the Roster of Public Agencies pertaining to that public agency which is on file at the time the claim, amendment or application is delivered or mailed. As used in this subdivision, "statement in the Roster of Public Agencies" means the statement or amended statement in the Roster of Public Agencies in the office of the Secretary of State or in the office of the county clerk of any county in which such statement or amended statement is on file.

SEC. 9. Section 930 of the Government Code is amended to read:

930. The State Board of Control may, by rule, authorize any state agency to include in any written agreement to which the agency is a party, provisions governing (a) the presentation, by or on behalf of any party thereto, of any or all claims which are required to be presented to the board arising out of or related to the agreement and (b) the consideration and payment of such claims. ~~A-claims-procedure-established-by-an-agreement-made-pursuant-to-this-section-exclusively-governs-the-claims-to-which-it-relates,-except-that-Sections-911.4-to-912.2,-inclusive,-are-applicable-to-all-such-claims.~~ As used in this section, "state agency" means any office, officer, department, division, bureau, board, commission or agency of the State claims against which are paid by warrants drawn by the Controller.

SEC. 10. Section 930.2 of the Government Code is amended to read:

930.2. The governing body of a local public entity may include in any written agreement to which the entity, its governing body, or any board or employee thereof in an official capacity is a party, provisions governing the presentation, by or on behalf of any party thereto, of any or all claims arising out of or related to the agreement and the consideration and payment of such claims. The written agreement may incorporate by reference claim provisions set forth in a specifically identified ordinance or resolution theretofore adopted by the governing body. A ~~claims-procedure-established-by-an-agreement-pursuant-to-this-section-exclusively-governs-the-claims-to-which-it-relates,-except-that-Sections 911.4-to-912.2,-inclusive,-are-applicable-to-all-such-claims.~~

SEC. 1 . Section 930.4 is added to Chapter 5 (commencing with Section 930) of Part 3 of Division 3.6 of Title 1 of the Government Code, to read:

930.4. A claims procedure established by agreement made pursuant to Section 930 or Section 930.2 exclusively governs the claims to which it relates, except that:

(a) The procedure so prescribed may not require a shorter time for presentation of any claim than the 100th day after the accrual of the cause of action to which the claim relates.

(b) The procedure so prescribed may not provide a longer time for the board to take action upon any claim than the time provided in Section 912.4.

(c) The procedure so prescribed may not authorize the consideration, adjustment, settlement, allowance or payment of a claim by any claims board or commission or employee of a local public entity contrary to the provisions of Section 935.2 or 935.4 or by any state agency contrary to the provisions of Section 935.6.

(d) If the procedure so prescribed requires a claim to be presented within a period of less than one year after the accrual of the cause of action and such claim is not presented within the required time, an application may be made to the public entity for leave to present such claim. Subdivision (b) of Section 911.4, Sections 911.6 to 912.2, inclusive, and Sections 946.4 and 946.6 are applicable to all such claims, and the time specified in the agreement shall be deemed the "time specified in Section 911.2" within the meaning of Sections 911.6 and 946.6.

SEC. 12. Section 930.6 is added to Chapter 5 (commencing with Section 930) of Part 3 of Division 3.6 of Title 1 of the Government Code, to read:

930.6. A claims procedure established by agreement made pursuant to Section 930 or Section 930.2 may include a requirement that a claim be presented and acted upon as a prerequisite to suit thereon. If such requirement is included, any action brought against the public entity on the claim shall be subject to the provisions of Section 945.6 and Section 946.

SEC. 13. Section 935 of the Government Code is amended to read;

935. (a) Claims against a local public entity for money or damages which are excepted by Section 905 from Chapter 1 (commencing with Section 900) and Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 910) of this part, and which are not governed by any other statutes or regulations expressly relating thereto, shall be governed by the procedure prescribed in any charter, ordinance or regulation adopted by the local public entity.

(b) The procedure so prescribed may include a requirement that a claim be presented and acted upon as a prerequisite to suit thereon, ~~but~~ . If such requirement is included, any action brought against the public entity on the claim shall be subject to the provisions of Section 945.6 and Section 946.

(c) The procedure so prescribed may not require a shorter time for presentation of any claim than the time provided in Section 911.2 nor .

(d) The procedure so prescribed may not provide a longer time for the board to take action upon any claim than the time provided in Section 912.4, and Sections 911.4 to 912.2, inclusive, are applicable to all claims governed thereby .

(e) When a claim required by the procedure to be presented within a period of less than one year after the accrual of the cause of action is not presented within the required time, an application may be made to the public entity for leave to present such claim.

Subdivision (b) of Section 911.4, Sections 911.6 to 912.2, inclusive, and Sections 946.4 and 946.6 are applicable to all such claims, and the time specified in the charter, ordinance or regulation shall be deemed the "time specified in Section 911.2" within the meaning of Sections 911.6 and 946.6.

SEC. 14. Section 935.2 of the Government Code is amended to read:

935.2. A charter provision, or a local public entity by ordinance or resolution, may establish a claims board or commission of not less than three members to perform such functions of the governing body of the public entity under this part as are prescribed by the local public entity. ~~The local-public-entity~~ charter, ordinance or resolution may provide that, upon the written order of the claims board or commission , the auditor or other fiscal officer of the local public entity shall cause a warrant to be drawn upon the treasury of the local public entity in the amount for which a claim has been allowed or compromised or settled.

SEC. 15. Section 935.4 of the Government Code is amended to read:

935.4. A charter provision, or a local public entity by ordinance or resolution, may authorize an employee ~~or commission~~ of the local public entity to perform such functions of the governing body of the public entity under this part as are prescribed by the local public entity, but only a charter provision may ~~not~~ authorize such employee ~~or commission~~ to allow, compromise or settle a claim against the local public entity if the amount to be paid pursuant to such allowance, compromise or settlement exceeds five thousand dollars (\$5,000) ~~, -except-that-a-charter-provision-may authorize-a-public-employee-or-commission-to-allow,-compromise-or-settle-a claim,-even-where-the-amount-to-be-paid-exceeds-five-thousand-dollars-(\$5,000)-.~~

The charter, ordinance or resolution may provide that, upon the written order of such employee ~~or commission~~, the auditor or other fiscal officer of the local public entity shall cause a warrant to be issued upon the treasury of the local public entity in the amount for which a claim has been allowed, compromised or settled.

SEC. 16. Section 943 of the Government Code is amended to read:

943. This part does not apply to claims or actions against the Regents of the University of California or against an employee or former employee of the Regents of the University of California .

SEC. 17. Section 945.4 of the Government Code is amended to read:

945.4. Except as provided in Sections 946.4 and 946.6, no suit for money or damages may be brought against a public entity on a cause of action for which a claim is required to be presented in accordance with Chapter 1 (commencing with Section 900) and Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 910) of Part 3 of this division until a written claim therefor has been presented to the public entity and has been acted upon by the board, or has been deemed to have been rejected by the board, in accordance with Chapters 1 and 2 of Part 3 of this division.

SEC. 18. Section 945.5 of the Government Code is repealed.

~~945.5. . . Where provision is made by law or otherwise that no suit may be brought against any public agency as defined in Section 5350 unless and until a claim is presented to such agency, or an employee thereof, and such agency has failed to file with the Secretary of State and with the county clerk of each county in which there is located any portion of the territory of such public agency the information required to be filed under Section 53071, then and in such event the presentation of any such claim shall not be required.~~

SEC. 19.. Section 945.6 of the Government Code is amended to read:

945.6. (a) Except as provided in Sections 946.4 and 946.6 and subject to subdivision (b) of this section, any suit brought against a public entity on a cause of action for which a claim is required to be presented in accordance with Chapter 1 (commencing with Section 900) and Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 910) of Part 3 of this division must be commenced within six months after the date the claim is acted upon the board, or is deemed to have been rejected by the board, in accordance with Chapters 1 and 2 of Part 3 of this division.

(b) When a person is unable to commence a suit on a cause of action described in subdivision (a) within the time prescribed in that subdivision because he has been sentenced to imprisonment in a state prison, such-suit-must-be-commenced-within the time limited for the commencement of such suit is extended to six months after the date that the civil right to commence such action is restored to such person, except that the time shall not be extended if the public entity establishes that the plaintiff failed to make a reasonable effort to commence the suit, or to obtain a restoration of his civil right to do so, before the expiration of the time prescribed in subdivision (a).

(c) A person sentenced to imprisonment in a state prison may not commence such a suit on a cause of action described in subdivision (a) unless he presented a claim in accordance with Chapter 1 (commencing with Section 900) and Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 910) of Part 3 of this division within-the-time-prescribed-therein.

SEC. 20. Section 945.8 of the Government Code is amended to read:

945.8. Except where a different statute of limitations is specifically applicable to the public entity, and except as provided in Sections 930.6 and 935, any action against a public entity upon a cause of action for which a claim is not required to be presented in accordance with Chapter 1 (commencing with Section 900) and Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 910) of Part 3 of this division must be commenced within the time prescribed by the statute of limitations that would be applicable if the action were brought against a defendant other than a public entity.

SEC. 21. Section 946.4 is added to the Government Code,  
to read:

946.4. (a) Where provision is made by or pursuant to law that no suit may be brought against a public agency as defined in Section 53050 unless and until a claim is presented to the agency, the failure to present a claim does not constitute a bar or defense to the maintenance of a suit against such public agency if, during the 70 days immediately following the accrual of the cause of action:

(1) No statement pertaining to the public agency is on file, or is placed on file, in the Roster of Public Agencies in the office of Secretary of State and of the county clerk of each county in which the public entity then maintains an office, as required by Section 53051; or

agency (2) A statement or amended statement pertaining to the public agency is on file, or is placed on file, in the Roster of Public Agencies in the office of Secretary of State and of the county clerk of each county in which the public agency then maintains an office, but the information contained therein is inaccurate or incomplete or does not substantially conform to the requirements of Section 53051.

(b) On any question of fact arising within the scope of paragraphs (1) and (2) of subdivision (a), the burden of proof is upon the public agency.

883. 22. Section 946.5 is added to the Government Code, to read:

946.5. (a) Where an application for leave to present a claim is denied or deemed to be denied pursuant to Section 911.6, a petition may be made to the court for an order relieving the petitioner from the provisions of Section 945.4. The proper court for filing the petition is a court of competent jurisdiction in which a suit on the cause of action to which the claim relates could be brought.

(b) The petition must show (1) that application was made to the board under Section 911.4 and was denied or deemed denied, (2) the reason for failure to present the claim within the time limit specified in Section 911.2 and (3) the information required by Section 910. The petition shall be filed within six months after the application to the board is denied or deemed to be denied pursuant to Section 911.6.

(c) The court shall relieve the petitioner from the provisions of Section 945.4 if the court finds that the application to the board under Section 911.4 was made within a reasonable time not to exceed one year after the accrual of the cause of action and was denied or deemed denied pursuant to Section 911.6 and that:

(1) The failure to present the claim was through mistake, inadvertence, surprise or excusable neglect unless the public entity establishes that it would be prejudiced if the court relieves the petitioner from the provisions of Section 945.4; or

(2) The person required to file the claim was a minor during all of the time specified in Section 911.2 for the presentation of the claim; or

(3) The person required to file the claim was physically or mentally incapacitated during all of the time specified in Section 911.2 for the presentation of the claim and by reason of such disability failed to present a claim during such time; or

(b) The person required to file the claim died before the expiration of the time specified in Section 911.2 for the presentation of the claim.

(d) A copy of the petition and a written notice of the time and place of hearing thereof shall be served not less than 10 days before the hearing on (1) the clerk or secretary or board of the local public entity, if the respondent is a local public entity, or (2) the State Board of Control or its secretary, if the respondent is the State.

(e) The court shall make an independent determination upon the petition. The determination shall be made upon the basis of the petition any affidavits in support of or in opposition to the petition, and any additional evidence received at the hearing on the petition.

(f) If the court makes an order relieving the petitioner from the provisions of Section 945.4, suit on the cause of action to which the claim relates must be filed in such court within 30 days thereafter.

SRS. 23. Section 950.2 of the Government Code is amended to read:

950.2. Except as provided in Section 900.4, a cause of action against a public employee or former public employee for injury resulting from an act or omission in the scope of his employment as a public employee is barred if an action against the employing public entity for such injury is barred under ~~Section 946 or is barred because of the failure (a) to present a written claim to the public entity or (b) to commence the action within the time specified in Section 945.6~~ Part 3 (commencing with Section 900) of this division or under Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 945) of Part 4 of this division . This section is applicable even though the public entity is immune from liability for the injury.

SEC. 24. Section 950.4 of the Government Code is amended to read:

950.4. A cause of action against a public employee or former public employee is not barred by Section 950.2 if the plaintiff pleads and proves that he did not know or have reason to know, within the period prescribed for the presentation of a claim to the employing public entity as a condition to maintaining an action for such injury against the employing public entity, as that period is prescribed by Section 911.2 or by such other claims procedure as may be applicable, that the injury was caused by an act or omission of the public entity or by an act or omission of an employee thereof of the public entity in the scope of his employment as a public employee .

SEC. 25. Section 950.6 of the Government Code is amended to read:

950.6. When a written claim for money or damages for injury has been presented to the employing public entity:

(a) A cause of action for such injury may not be maintained against the public employee or former public employee whose act or omission caused such injury until the claim has been rejected, or has been deemed to have been rejected, in whole or in part by the public entity.

(b) A suit against the public employee or former public employee for such injury must be commenced within six months after the date the claim is acted upon by the board, or is deemed to have been rejected by the board, in accordance with Chapter 1 (commencing with Section 900) and Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 910) of Part 3 of this division ~~everywhere~~ .

(c) When a person is unable to commence the suit within such the time prescribed in subdivision (b) because he has been sentenced to imprisonment in a state prison, such-suit-must-be-commenced-within the time limited for the commencement of such suit is extended to six months after the date that the civil right to commence such action is restored to such person, except that the time shall not be extended if the public employee or former public employee establishes that the plaintiff failed to make a reasonable effort to commence the suit, or to obtain a restoration of his civil right to do so, before the expiration of the time prescribed in subdivision (b).

SEC. 26. Section 960.2 of the Government Code is repealed.

~~960.2.---In any suit against a public agency, if the governing body of any public agency fails to comply with Section 53051, notwithstanding any provision of law to the contrary, or if the governing body cannot with due diligence be found at the last known official mailing address of the governing body of the public agency, and it is shown by affidavit to the satisfaction of the court or judge that personal service of process against a public agency cannot be made with the exercise of due diligence, the court or judge may make an order that the service be made upon the public agency by delivery by hand to the Secretary of State or to any person employed in his office in the capacity of an assistant or deputy, employed in his office in the capacity of an assistant or deputy, of two copies of the process for each defendant to be served, together with two copies of the order authorizing such service. Service in this manner constitutes personal service upon the public agency.~~

~~A fee of five dollars (\$5) shall be paid by the plaintiff to the Secretary of State for each public agency on which service is made in this manner.~~

SEC. 27. Section 960.2 is added to the Government Code, to read:

960.2. Notwithstanding any provision of law to the contrary, service of process in an action or proceeding against a public agency may be made in the manner provided in Section 960.3 if, during the ten days immediately following the commencement of the action or proceeding:

(a) No statement pertaining to the public agency is on file, or is placed on file, in the Roster of Public Agencies in the office of Secretary of State and of the county clerk of each county in which the public agency then maintains an office, as required by Section 53051; or

(b) A statement or amended statement pertaining to the public agency is on file, or is placed on file, in the Roster of Public Agencies in the office of Secretary of State and of the county clerk of each county in which the public agency then maintains an office, but the information contained therein is inaccurate or incomplete or does not substantially conform to the requirements of Section 53051; or

(c) A statement or amended statement pertaining to the public agency is on file, or is placed on file, in the Roster of Public Agencies in the office of Secretary of State and of the county clerk of each county in which the public agency then maintains an office, but neither the governing body nor any officer or agent of the public agency upon whom personal service of process constitutes service upon the public agency can thereafter, with due diligence, be personally served at the address or addresses set forth in the statement.

SEC. 28. Section 960.3 is added to the Government Code

to read:

960.3. (a) If it is shown by affidavit to the satisfaction of the court or judge that the circumstances required by Section 960.2 exist, the court or judge may make an order that service of process be made upon the public agency as provided in this section.

(b) Service of process shall be made by:

(1) Leaving two copies of the process for each public agency defendant to be served, together with two copies of the order authorizing such service, in the hands of the Secretary of State or in his office at Sacramento; or

(2) Mailing two copies of the process for each public agency defendant to be served, together with two copies of the order authorizing such service, to the office of the Secretary of State in Sacramento by certified or registered mail, addressee only, return receipt requested. Service shall be effective as of the day the return receipt is received from the office of the Secretary of State.

(c) Service in this manner constitutes personal service upon the public agency.

(d) A fee of five dollars (\$5) shall be paid by the plaintiff to the Secretary of State for each public agency on which service is made in this manner.

SEC. 29. Section 960.4 of the Government Code is amended to read:

960.4. Upon receipt of the copies of process pursuant to Section ~~960.2~~ 960.3, the Secretary of State shall give notice of the service of the process to the governing body of the public agency at its principal office in this State, by forwarding to such office, by registered mail with request for return receipt, a copy of the process. If the only address disclosed by the records of the Secretary of State of the principal office of the governing body of the public agency is the county in which it is situated, then the process shall be mailed to the county seat, addressed to the public agency in care of the county clerk, or it may be mailed to any address for the public agency specified in the court order. If the process is mailed in care of the county clerk, the county clerk shall promptly send it to the public agency at its address within the county, if known to him, and if unknown shall cause the process to be posted at the courthouse of the county for 30 days. If the records of the Secretary of State disclose no address for the public agency, then the Secretary of State shall mail a copy of the process to the county clerk of either (a) the county in which the transaction or occurrence took place, or (b) the county where real property of the agency is situated, and the county clerk shall promptly send the process to the public agency at its address within the county, if known to him, or if unknown shall cause the process to be posted at the courthouse of the county for 30 days.

Upon receipt of such copies of process, the Secretary of State shall immediately forward to the Attorney General a copy of all papers served upon him. The Attorney General, upon receipt of any such process, may locate the responsible officers of the public agency involved, and the governing body of such public agency may relieve the Attorney General of any further responsibility hereunder, and may designate any other attorneys to defend said action or take such other action as they may determine.

SEC. 30. Section 960.8 is added to Chapter 5 (commencing with Section 960) of Part 4 of Division 3.6 of Title 1 of the Government Code, to read:

960.8. Service of process in an action or proceeding against a public agency may be made in conformity with the information contained in the statement in the Roster of Public Agencies pertaining to that public agency which is on file at the time of such service. Service in this manner, if otherwise made in compliance with law, constitutes personal service upon the public agency.

As used in this section, "statement in the Roster of Public Agencies" means the statement or amended statement in the Roster of Public Agencies in the office of the Secretary of State or in the office of the county clerk of any county in which such statement or amended statement is on file.

SEC. 31. Section 53050 of the Government Code is amended to read:

53050. The term "public agency," as used in this article, means ~~any political-subdivision-of-the-State,~~ a district of-any-kind-or-class , public authority of-any-kind-or-class , public agency, and any other political subdivision or public corporation in the State , ~~other-than~~ but does not include the State or a county, city and county, or city ,-or-town .

SEC. 32. Section 53051 of the Government Code is amended to read:

53051. (a) Within ninety (90) days after ~~the effective date of this article or after~~ the date of commencement of its legal existence, ~~whichever is later,~~ the governing body of each public agency shall file with the Secretary of State and also with the county clerk of each county in which ~~there is located any portion of the territory of~~ the public agency maintains an office , a statement of the following facts:

1. The full, legal name of the public agency.
2. The official mailing address of the governing body of the public agency.
3. The names and residence or business addresses of each member of the governing body of the public agency.
4. The name, title, and ~~if different from the information required in paragraph 3,~~ the residence or business address of the chairman, president, or other presiding officer, and clerk and or secretary of the governing body of such public agency.

(b) Within 10 days after any change in the facts required to be stated pursuant to subdivision (a), a an amended statement of containing the information required by subdivision (a) shall be filed as provided therein.

(c) It shall be the duty of the Secretary of State and of the county clerk of each county to establish and maintain an indexed "Roster of Public Agencies", to be so designated, which shall contain all information filed as required in subdivisions (a) and (b), which roster is hereby declared to be a public record.